
  

 

 

Enclosed are the agenda and prepared attachments for this meeting. 

Copies of these materials may be made at the public’s expense. 

The public may participate by using the following URL: 

https://go.sjvls.org/automation250716 

To participate in the meeting by telephone, call: 

(559) 785-0133 

Enter Phone Conference ID: 668 285 324# 

 
  
  

July 16, 2025 Online via Microsoft Teams 10:00 a.m. 

SAN JOAQUIN VALLEY 

LIBRARY SYSTEM 
2420 Mariposa Street 

Fresno, CA 93721 
559-600-6256 

Automation Committee 

Agenda Packet 

The public may also participate at any of these teleconference locations: 

Coalinga-Huron District Library: 305 NORTH 4TH ST, COALINGA CA 93210 

Fresno County Public Library: 2420 MARIPOSA ST, FRESNO CA 93721 

Kern County Library: 701 TRUXTUN AVE, BAKERSFIELD CA 93301 

Kings County Library: 401 NORTH DOUTY, HANFORD CA 93230 

Mariposa County Library: 4978 10TH ST, MARIPOSA CA 95338 

Merced County Library: 2100 O ST, MERCED CA 95340 

Porterville City Library: 15 E. THURMAN AVE. SUITE B, PORTERVILLE, CA 93257 

Tulare County Library: 200 WEST OAK AVE, VISALIA CA 93291 

Tulare Public Library: 475 NORTH M ST, TULARE CA 93274 

Accessibility and Accommodations: In accordance with the Americans with 
Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, 
please contact the San Joaquin Valley Library System at (559) 600-6256 no 
later than 10:00 a.m. on Tuesday July 15, 2025. 

Public records: Disclosable public records related to this agenda are available 
for public review at the Fresno County Public Library, Business Office, located 
at 2420 Mariposa Street, Fresno, CA 93721, during regular business hours, 8:00 
a.m. – 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday. 

https://go.sjvls.org/automation250716


  

AGENDA 

A. COUNCIL OPENING 

1. Call to Order 
2. Introductions 
3. Adoption of the Agenda 
4. Public Comment – The Public may comment on any items relative to SJVLS 

and not on the agenda. 

B. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF MAY 21, 2025 (ATTACHMENT 1) 

C. ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND ACTION 

1. ACTION: Update Default Notice Language for Horizon Blocks – Wymer 
(Attachment 2) 

2. DISCUSSION: Changes in ZipBook Tracking and Reporting – Wymer  
3. DISCUSSION: Windows 11 Transition – Wymer   
4. DISCUSSION: Migrating Reports to BC Analytics – Wymer  

D. STAFF REPORTS 

1. Senior Network Systems Engineer 
2. Associate System Administrator 
3. System Administrator 

E. CALENDAR ITEMS 

1. Set the date and agenda building for the next meeting, tentatively September 
17, 2025, at Tulare Public Library 

F. ANNOUNCEMENTS 

1. Committee members are invited to share items relating to collaboration, 
innovation, and professional development of interest to the Committee. 

G. ADJOURNMENT 

SJVLS Automation Committee Meeting - July 16, 2025

2



 

SAN JOAQUIN VALLEY LIBRARY SYSTEM 
Automation Committee Meeting 

May 21, 2025 

 

DRAFT MINUTES 

A. CALL TO ORDER 

1. The meeting was called to order at 10:00 a.m. by Chris Wymer 

B. ROLL CALL AND INTRODUCTIONS 

1. Roll call was conducted.  
i. PRESENT 

1. Tiffany Polfer (Fresno), Kristie Pratt (Kern), Brian Martin (Kings), 
Smruti Deshpande (Merced), Alex Pollock (Porterville), Faythe 
Arredondo (Tulare County), Heidi Clark (Tulare City), Chris Wymer 
(Chair) 

ii. OTHERS PRESENT 
1. Kevin Nelson (SJVLS), Louisa Lopez (Merced) 

iii. ABSENT 
1. Yvonne Galvan (Coalinga-Huron), Sarah McIntyre (Madera), Matt 

Johnson (Mariposa) 
2. Introductions were conducted. 

C. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 

1. Pratt (Kern) motioned to adopt the agenda as distributed. 
i. Clark (Tulare City) seconded the motion. 

ii. The motion passed. 

D. PUBLIC COMMENT 

1. There were no comments from the public. 

E. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS MEETING MINUTES 

1. Pollock (Porterville) motioned to adopt the minutes as distributed. 
i. Deshpande (Merced) seconded the motion. 

ii. The motion passed. 

F. PROJECTS FOR DISCUSSION AND ACTION 

1. FY 2025-26 Meeting Schedule – Wymer 
i. Wymer shared the proposed Automation Committee meeting schedule 

with the committee and asked if there were any conflicts or issues with 
the dates or meeting locations. No issues with the proposed schedule 
were identified. 

1. Pratt (Kern) motioned to accept the proposed meeting schedule. 
2. Arredondo (Tulare County) seconded. 

SJVLS Automation Committee Meeting - July 16, 2025 Attachment 1

3



a. Motion passed. 
2. Horizon – Wymer 

i. Wymer provided an update on the future of Horizon after attending the 
COSUGI Conference. The word he’s using to describe the conference is 
bittersweet. During the conference SirsiDynix and Harris both expressed 
there are no plans to end-of-life Horizon, and that they will continue to 
support the software if customers are using it. That being said, Harris’s 
CEO also emphasized that they would size their support staff to reflect 
the number of customers using the software. Therefore, as more 
systems migrate to other ILSes, the number of staff supporting Horizon 
will decrease. At this time, it appears inevitable that SJVLS will need to 
migrate to a new ILS, especially with SirsiDynix not bidding Horizon on 
ILS RFPs.  

ii. Wymer discussed some challenges around the current situation. SJVLS’s 
master agreement with SirsiDynix ends after FY 2025-26. At that time we 
can go year-to-year and stay on Horizon, but we will not have 
contractual agreements that limit the year-over-year increases in our 
annual maintenance costs. At the same time, SJVLS does not currently 
have enough staff for the ILS to take on a migration. Another 
complication is finding another system that would support all the 
differences in our members’ circulation policies and provide the 
customization needed for a consortia of our size. The last time we 
reviewed ILS functionality, none of the proposed systems supported all 
SJVLS’s needs. Wymer plans on informally reaching out to companies to 
ask about their products and features and start gathering information 
on what the next steps would look like and what changes might have to 
be made to allow a migration to happen. 

iii. Martin mentioned that he would like to see the next RFP scoring criteria 
emphasize features over cheapest price. The idea would be to ensure 
SJVLS is able to migrate to an ILS with a robust feature set, as opposed 
to a system with the cheapest price. 

iv. Pratt shared that customization of the public-facing interfaces needs to 
be a feature in the system that comes next.  

3. ODBC Connector for BC Analytics – Wymer 
i. Wymer shared that during COSUGI he found out the connector to make 

live queries against Horizon from BC Analytics is available for self-hosted 
sites for a small, one-time fee of $1,800. The ODBC connector would 
allow us to pull in fields from Horizon that are not harvested by Analytics, 
along with getting live data. This would provide a pathway for SJVLS to 
migrate Jasper Reports into Analytics and eventually shut off Jasper.  

ii. Pratt asked about EZ Proxy reports if Jasper was turned off. Wymer will 
investigate MySQL’s native reporting tools, or other ways to continue to 
offer EZ Proxy usage reports. 

1. Clark (Tulare City) motioned to approve adding the ODBC 
Connector. 

2. Pratt (Kern) seconded. 
a. Motion Passed 

4. Legal Names – Wymer 

SJVLS Automation Committee Meeting - July 16, 2025 Attachment 1

4



i. Wymer asked the committee for an update on the new legal name field 
and searches, and how things are going with staff and patrons. The 
consensus was that preferred names are well received and are a nice 
service to offer patrons whose names have recently changed, but their 
official identification hasn’t been updated. The main challenges around 
the transition have been training-related and adjusting to the change.  

ii. Wymer then provided an update on a small bug that affected legal 
name browse searching and detailed the fix that was put in place by 
SirsiDynix staff.  

5. Borrower Registration and Updating Info – Wymer 
i. Prior to the meeting, both Madera County and Tulare Public reached 

out with different questions about borrower registration or updating 
registration information when a borrower moves. 

ii. Clark shared that she’s encountering more patrons with duplicate 
accounts created through self-registration, and access issues created by 
the recent changes to OverDrive authentication.  

iii. Polfer then asked about documentation for self-registration. Wymer 
answered that there is not a lot of documentation, and he needs to 
correct it. 

iv. Pratt mentioned that she’s noticing a lot of patrons will create a second 
self-registration account when their first one expires, instead of coming 
into the library to convert the card into a full-use card.  

v. Wymer then reviewed Madera’s request about how to correctly update 
borrower information when a borrower moves jurisdictions, and asked 
the committee if it would help to have training on borrower records. The 
consensus was it is a good idea. Wymer will work on scheduling it. 

6. Cataloging – Wymer  
i. Wymer asked the committee how the change to copy cataloging is 

going and if there are any issues staff are running into. Overall, the 
change has been positive and there are not a lot of issues.  

ii. Pollock shared that he runs into problems when he wants to import a 
record and there’s an existing Zip book record in Horizon. In those 
situations, he cannot import the full record, because he was instructed 
to never overlay bib records. Other committee members shared their 
own challenges related to Zip books and that beginning next fiscal year, 
the State Library has new reporting requirements that will make 
cataloging and tracking of Zip book materials more important. Based on 
the various challenges, and the new reporting requirements, Wymer will 
make Zip Books an item for the next committee meeting.  

iii. Wymer then asked about Original Cataloging. He shared the volume of 
original records requests this year has decreased dramatically from 
previous years. One of the reasons for the decrease in volume is 
members were under the impression they would have to pay for each 
record that’s created and wanted to be judicious about their requests. 
Another reason is the process for creating digital surrogates is long and 
complicated. Wymer will see what he can do to make the process easier 
and remind the members that original records costs are paid for from 
membership dues and not billed to the requesting member as was 
originally proposed. 

SJVLS Automation Committee Meeting - July 16, 2025 Attachment 1

5



7. Suggested Search Terms in Enterprise – Wymer  
i. Wymer shared a recent issue with search suggestions that impacted 

Fresno County’s internal catalog profiles. An offensive term was added to 
the suggestions and had to be removed. While asking for the term to be 
removed, SirsiDynix support informed Wymer that he could set up 
weekly email notifications to let staff know about new terms added to 
search suggestions. 

ii. Wymer informed the committee that he will add all JSAs to the search 
suggestions emails for all three of their Enterprise profiles. This way 
search suggestions can be monitored both for offensive terms that 
should be blacklisted from appearing as suggestions, as well to allow 
staff to keep track of popular searches by their patrons.  

iii. Additional staff can also receive the updated suggestion emails. Wymer 
just needs to know who should receive them. He will set up the JSAs to 
start receiving them this week. 

8. Windows 11 Transition – Wymer  
i. Wymer shared that Microsoft has announced an end-of-life date for 

Windows 10 of October 14, 2025. This isn’t an issue for staff workstations, 
and we should be able to transition staff to Windows 11 by the deadline. 
Public workstations are more problematic. SJVLS has not found a way to 
disable patrons from logging into apps and services under Windows 11. 
This is an issue because it could allow other patrons to either: view and 
use someone else’s account or be able to see who else has used that 
computer, creating a privacy issue. If a method for locking down public 
computers isn’t found, SJVLS will have to consider a subscription to a 
service like Deep Freeze.  

ii. Martin shared that the College Library he also works at has deployed 
Windows 11 for public computers and have found ways to lock down the 
features that give SJVLS concerns. He will double-check how that’s 
being done and report back to SJVLS.  

G. STAFF REPORTS 

1. Senior Systems Network Engineer 
i. Nelson reported the Spring PC Order is moving faster than expected. 

The order has already been delivered to SJVLS Headquarters. 
Unfortunately, the freight elevator broke down this morning, and SJVLS 
cannot distribute PCs or printers until it’s fixed.  

ii. Nelson also reported that the Year 11 CENIC selections are complete and 
SJVLS is ready to return them to CENIC to prepare the amendment 
paperwork.  

iii. Nelson then encouraged committee members to consider sending staff 
to the CENIC conference. He mentioned that conference attendance is 
heavily in favor of research universities and institutions, and it would be 
beneficial to have a larger representation of public library networking 
staff at the conference.  

iv. Nelson’s final update provided information about the status of SJVLS’s 
Category 2 E-Rate projects. The 2021 WiFi Expansion project is nearing 
completion. Most of the locations are fully installed and complete. There 
are only a few branches with work left to do, and a couple of issues to 

SJVLS Automation Committee Meeting - July 16, 2025 Attachment 1

6



circle back and correct. The 2024 and 2025 projects are being finalized 
and the Agreement to Orders should be signed soon. 

2. System Administrator 
i. Wymer informed the committee that SJVLS hired a Librarian III. They are 

going to start on June 23, 2025.  
ii. Wymer then provided an update on the BC Mobile 2.0 migration. He has 

not had a chance to do any additional set up work. At the COSUGI 
conference, SirsiDynix shared a mockup of the linked accounts feature 
that’s currently in development. Once this feature is ready, we can 
migrate.  

iii. Wymer’s next update was to inform the committee that he’s scheduled 
an upgrade for Enterprise. The upgrade will take place on June 2. It will 
start at 7:00 a.m. and should be completed by lunchtime. The reason for 
the upgrade was to address issues with creating display codes in the 
administrative interface.  

iv. Wymer’s final update was to inform the committee that the State 
Library announced they will release a new set of Broadband Grant 
funding in June. Wymer hopes to apply for grant funding to cover the 
members’ portions of the 2025 Category 2 project, which will replace HQ 
routers with models designed to support higher bandwidth. These are 
needed in order to continue upgrading branch bandwidth to faster 
speeds.  

H. CALENDAR ITEMS 

1. Date and location for next Automation Committee Meeting 
i. July 16, 2025 online via Microsoft Teams. 

I. ANNOUNCEMENTS  

1. Deshpande announced that Merced County re-opened their Dos Palos Library 
in its new building. The branch was renamed to Jerry O’Banion Library. Funding 
for the new construction was provided through the State Library’s 
Infrastructure Grants. 

2. Pratt announced the Kern River Valley Library renovations were completed that 
the branch just re-opened for service. The Taft Library will re-open on June 2. 
The Arvin, California City, and Wasco branches just closed for renovations.  

3. Martin announced that he’s trying a new brand of printers after HP costs 
increased recently. He tested the Brothers brand printer and it’s been working 
great so far.  

4. Polfer announced that the Sanger Library re-opened on Monday. The Selma 
branch renovation is still on-going. 

5. Arredondo announced that Tulare County is expecting to re-open the 
Springville Library in its new building this fall. The Alpaugh Library will be the 
next branch closing for renovations.   

J. ADJOURNMENT 

1. There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourned at 12:32 pm.  

SJVLS Automation Committee Meeting - July 16, 2025 Attachment 1

7



DATE:    July 16, 2025 

TO:    SJVLS Automation Committee 

SUBMITTED BY: Chris Wymer – Administrative Librarian 
 
SUBJECT:   Update Default Notice Language for Horizon Blocks 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:   

1. Update the default notice language for Horizon blocks to remove any references to 
COVID, branch closures, or curbside pickup, and/or modernize the language used in 
general.  

Approval of the recommended action will modify default notice language for blocks to bring 
their content into alignment with current practices at libraries.  
 

ALTERNATIVE ACTION(S): 
 
There are no alternative actions. 
 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
There is no fiscal impact associated with the recommended action.   
 

DISCUSSION: 
 
Fresno County recently pointed out hold notifications still contain language about branch 
closures and curbside pickup, which is a holdover from the pandemic. They’re requesting to 
update the notice language and remove those references, because they’re no longer 
applicable.  
 
As a result of the way Horizon generates notices, and borrowers that use libraries outside the 
jurisdiction where they’re registered, all SJVLS libraries share the same notice language. This 
means the Automation Committee needs to collaboratively work on and agree to the notice 
language for blocks. 
 
The attachment to this agenda item provides the current notice language for all blocks that 
automatically print notices. 
 

PRIOR AGENDA REFERENCE: 
 
No prior reference. 
 

ATTACHMENTS INCLUDED AND/OR ON FILE: 
 
Attachment 1 – Current notice language with proposed updates. 
 
 
Motion:     Second: 
 
______ PASSED  ____ REJECTED 
 

SJVLS Automation Committee Meeting - July 16, 2025 Attachment 2

8



 

ATTACHMENT 1 – DEFAULT NOTICE LANGUAGE 
 

Auto Renew Notice 
 
Current notice language (only sent as an email): 
 

One or more items that you borrowed were due today. As a courtesy, we attempted to 
automatically renew them for you. Please check the due dates for the items listed 
below to see which items auto renewed and which are still due. Please disregard this 
notice if you already returned the item(s). Contact your local library branch if you have 
any questions. 

 
Billing Notice 
 
Current notice language: 
 

Library records show that the following charges have not been paid. Please resolve 
them soon. If you have recently contacted the library, please disregard this notice. 
Delinquent accounts may be sent to a collection agency. 

 
Damaged Materials Notice 
 
Current notice language: 
 

The materials listed were damaged in your possession and a fee has been charged to 
your account. 

 
First Overdue Notice – Print and Email 
 
Current print notice language: 
 

First Overdue Notice. Library records show the following item(s) overdue. If you have 
returned them, please excuse this notice. Otherwise, please return them as soon as 
possible to avoid increasing fines. 

 
Current email notice language: 
 

First Overdue Notice. Library records show the following item(s) overdue. If you have 
returned them, please excuse this notice. Otherwise, please return them as soon as 
possible to avoid increasing fines. ***Do not reply to this email, contact the library 
directly.*** 

 
First Overdue Notice – SMS 
 
Current notice language: 
 

You have one or more library items overdue. This is the first notice. Tiene uno o mas 
articulos de la biblioteca vencidos. Este es su primer aviso. 

 
Second Overdue Notice – Print and Email 
 
Current print notice language: 
 

Second Overdue Notice. The following item(s) has(have) been overdue for quite some 
time. Please resolve this problem before we are forced to bill you for replacement of 

SJVLS Automation Committee Meeting - July 16, 2025 Attachment 2

9



the item(s). 
 
Current email notice language: 
 

Second Overdue Notice. The following item(s) has(have) been overdue for quite some 
time. Please resolve this problem before we are forced to bill you for replacement of 
the item(s). ***Do not reply to this email, contact the library directly.*** 

 
Second Overdue Notice – SMS 
 
Current notice language: 
 

You have one or more library items overdue. This is the second notice. Tiene uno o mas 
articulos de la biblioteca vencidos. Este es su segundo aviso. 

 
Third Overdue Notice – Print and Email 
 
Current print notice language: 
 

Third Overdue Notice. The following item(s) has(have) been overdue for quite some 
time. Please resolve this problem before we are forced to bill you for replacement of 
the item(s). 
 

Current email notice language: 
 

Third Overdue Notice. The following item(s) has(have) been overdue for quite some 
time. Please resolve this problem before we are forced to bill you for replacement of 
the item(s). ***Do not reply to this email, contact the library directly.*** 

 
Third Overdue Notice – SMS 
 
Current notice language: 
 

You have one or more library items overdue. This is the third notice. Tiene uno o mas 
articulos de la biblioteca vencidos. Este es su tercer aviso. 

 
Fourth Overdue Notice – Print and Email 
 
Current print notice language: 
 

Fourth Overdue Notice. The following item(s) has(have) been overdue for quite some 
time. Please resolve this problem before we are forced to bill you for replacement of 
the item(s). 
 

Current email notice language: 
 

Fourth Overdue Notice. The following item(s) has(have) been overdue for quite some 
time. Please resolve this problem before we are forced to bill you for replacement of 
the item(s). ***Do not reply to this email, contact the library directly.*** 

 
Final Overdue Notice – Print and Email 
 
Current print notice language: 
 

This is your final notice to return the item(s) listed below. If the items are not returned 
promptly, you will be billed for the replacement cost of the item(s) plus a processing 

SJVLS Automation Committee Meeting - July 16, 2025 Attachment 2

10



fee. Delinquent accounts may be sent to a collection agency. 
Final Overdue Notice – SMS 
 
Current notice language: 
 

You have one or more library items overdue. This is the final notice. Tiene uno o mas 
articulos de la biblioteca vencidos. Este es su ultima aviso. 

 
Lost Notice 
 
Current notice language: 
 

The following item is now considered lost and you have been charged for its value. Lost 
processing fees may also apply. Please contact the library immediately to resolve the 
charges and avoid placement of your account with a collection agency. 

 
Hold Notice – Print and Email 
 
Current print notice language: 
 

The following item(s) are being held for you until the date shown below. Your library 
may still offer curbside pickup or have limited hours. For more information about ways 
to pick up your hold(s) and current hours, please contact your library. 
 

Current email notice language: 
 

The following item(s) are being held for you until the date shown below. Your library 
may still offer curbside pickup or have limited hours. For more information about ways 
to pick up your hold(s) and current hours, please contact your library. Do not reply to 
this email, contact the library directly. 

 
Hold Notice – Phone Notice  
 
NOTE: this only gets sent when a phone notice cannot be delivered through a phone call. 
 
Current print notice language: 
 

The following item(s) are being held for you until the date shown below. Your library 
may still offer curbside pickup or have limited hours. For more information about ways 
to pick up your hold(s) and current hours, please contact your library. 
 

Current email notice language: 
 

The following item(s) are being held for you until the date shown below. Your library 
may still offer curbside pickup or have limited hours. For more information about ways 
to pick up your hold(s) and current hours, please contact your library. ***Do not reply to 
this email, contact the library directly.*** 

 
Hold Notice – SMS 
 
Current notice language: 
 

A hold is ready for pickup at the library. Check ValleyCat for details. Sus articulos estan 
listos para recoger a la biblioteca. Verifique en ValleyCat. 

 
 

SJVLS Automation Committee Meeting - July 16, 2025 Attachment 2

11



 
Pre-Overdue Notices 
 
Each location has it’s own notice language, but language is consistent for all locations in a 
jurisdiction. The basic template of a pre-overdue notice is below: 
 
Current notice header language:  
 

This is a courtesy reminder from the {JURISDICTION} that the following item(s) will be 
due on 

 
Current notice footer language: 
 
Jurisdictions in 559 area code: 
 

If you would like to renew them, call 559-444-0412 or 866-290-8681 to use our 
automated phone renewal system OR renew online at  
 
{JURISDICTION}: {SHORT VALLEYCAT LINK} 
 
*** You will need your library card number and PIN to renew. *** 
 
Thank you 

 
Jurisdictions outside 559 area code: 
 

If you would like to renew them, call 866-290-8681 to use our automated phone 
renewal system OR renew online at  
 
{JURISDICTION}: {SHORT VALLEYCAT LINK} 
 
*** You will need your library card number and PIN to renew. *** 
 
Thank you 

SJVLS Automation Committee Meeting - July 16, 2025 Attachment 2

12


	AUTO_agenda_25_07_16
	attachment1_automation_2025_05_21_minutes_draft
	attachment2a_Update_Default_Notice_Language



